
 

DESERT WATER AGENCY    BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
APRIL 5, 2016                                                                        REGULAR MEETING AGENDA                                            
 
REGULAR MEETING   8:00 A.M.   OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 SOUTH GENE AUTRY TRAIL  – PALM SPRINGS – CALIFORNIA 

About Desert Water Agency: 
Desert Water Agency operates independently of any other local government.  Its autonomous elected board members are directly accountable to the people they serve. The Agency is one of the desert’s 
two State Water Contractors and provides water and resource management, including recycling, for a 325-square-mile area of Western Riverside County, encompassing parts of Cathedral City, Desert 
Hot Springs, outlying Riverside County and Palm Springs. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  March 15, 2016  CIOFFI                       

                                 
3. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   KRAUSE 

 
4. COMMITTEE REPORTS –   A. Executive – March 30, 2016  CIOFFI 

                                            
5. PUBLIC INPUT:  

Members of the public may comment on any item not listed on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency.  In addition, members of the public 
may speak on any item listed on the agenda as that item comes up for consideration.  Speakers are requested to keep their comments to no more than 
three (3) minutes.  As provided in the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from acting on items not listed on the agenda.                                                            

  
6. ITEMS FOR ACTION  
  

A. Water Use Violation – Civil Penalty Hearings   KRAUSE 
 

B. Request Authorization to Reallocate 2015/2016 Main Oversizing Budget  JOHNSON 
 

C. Request Authorization to Call for Bids for Constructing 1240 Booster Plant  JOHNSON 
(Desert Palisade Development)  
 

D. Request Approval to Begin Process of Advanced Refunding 2007 Certificates of Participation KRIEGER 
 

E. Request Adoption of Resolution No. 1129 Nominating Kristin Bloomer for Special District Member KRAUSE 
of the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO)    

      
7. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION   

A. State Water Contractors’ Meeting – March 17, 2016  RIDDELL                                                                   
 

8. PUBLIC INFORMATION  HUDGENS 
 A. Media Information 
 B. PI Activities 
 
9. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND REQUESTS 

 
10. CLOSED SESSION 

  
 A.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al 
 
 B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al 
  
 C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. Department of Interior 
 
 
 
 



 
DWA Board Agenda 
April 5, 2016 
Page 2 
 D. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION   
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert Water Agency 
 
 E. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 
  Property: 1.17 acre lot North of the Northeast corner of Sunrise Way and Mesquite Avenue,  
  APN No. 502-560-038 
  Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steven L. Johnson, Asst. General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: Chris Thomsen, New Mesquite HOA 
  Under Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition 
    
11. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION – REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

 
12. ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person 
with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Desert Water Agency’s Executive Secretary, at (760) 323-4971, at least 48 working 
hours prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make reasonable arrangements.  Copies of records provided to Board members which relate to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may 
be obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda. 



8643 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 03/15/16 

 

2 
MINUTES 

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
March 15, 2016 

 
DWA Board: James Cioffi, President  ) 
 Joseph K. Stuart, Vice President   )         
 Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
  Craig A. Ewing, Director ) 
   
DWA Staff: Mark S. Krause, General Manager ) 
 Steve Johnson, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board ) 
 Ashley Hudgens, Public Information Officer ) 
 Irene Gaudinez, Human Resources Manager ) 
    
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
 Robert Reeb, Reeb Government Relations ) 
 
Public: David Freedman, PS Sustainability Comm. ) 
 Irene Hinkley, Desert La Palme HOA ) 
      

Attendance 

17423.  President Cioffi opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join Vice President Stuart in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
   
17424.   President Cioffi called for approval of the March 1, 2016 
Regular Board meeting minutes.  
 
  Director Oygar moved for approval. After a second by Vice 
President Stuart, the minutes were approved as written (Director Ewing 
abstained due to his absence). 
 
17425.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
provide an update on Agency operations. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated that DWA sponsored a special award at the 
32nd Annual Palm Springs Unified School District’s Science Fair. Vicki 
Petek, Public Information Associate helped judge the event held on 
February 24. The winner was Jamsheed Nasr, a 5th grader from Katherine 
Finchy Elementary. His project was “Green is Hot”, which was based on 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Approval of 03/01/16 
Regular Board Mtg. 
Minutes  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Report 
 
 
 
PS Unified School 
District’s Science Fair 
Winner 
 
 
 
 



8644 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 03/15/16 

 
comparing different types of artificial turf and real turf to determine which 
may reach a higher temperature. 
 
  Mr. Krause then announced upcoming community events that 
staff will be attending. 
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Krause stated that increased 
conservation enforcement has led to 25 civil penalties observed by DWA 
representatives. 
 
  Mr. Krause noted that several well sites had new interior and 
exterior electrical panels installed. Other well sites interiors and exteriors 
were painted by a contractor. 
   
  Mr. Krause stated that Hort Tech Landscaping recently 
cleared out trees, weeds and other plant life from the spreading basins. This 
clean-up has helped the Agency prepare the basins to receive water in the 
near future. 
 
  Mr. Krause noted several meetings and activities he 
participated in during the past several weeks. 
   
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause provided the Board with a 
PowerPoint presentation of the canal damage at the State Water Project 
Pool 30 location. 
 
17426.  President Cioffi noted the minutes for the March 10, 2016 
Executive Committee were provided in the Board’s packet. 
 
17427.  President Cioffi opened the meeting for public input. 
 
  Irene Hinkley, Desert La Palme HOA, commented on the 
recent fine it was issued. 
 
  President Cioffi suggested staff work with Ms. Hinkley on 
this matter. 
      
  There being no one else from the public wishing to address 
the Board, President Cioffi closed the public comment period. 
 
17428.  President Cioffi called upon Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer to 
provide an overview of financial activities for the month of February 2016. 
 
  Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer reported that the Operating 
Fund received $1,288,245 in Water Sales Revenue and $64,479 in 
Reclamation Sales Revenue. Included in the Miscellaneous Receipts is 
$6,887 from the U.S. Forest Service (permit refunds from prior year). 
$1,842,411 was paid out in Accounts Payable. Year-to-date Water Sales are 

General Manager’s 
Report 
(Cont.) 
 
Upcoming Community 
Events 
 
 
 
Conservation 
Enforcement 
 
 
 
 
Well Site 
Improvements 
 
 
 
2016 Spreading Basins 
Clean-Up 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Meetings & Activities 
 
 
 
Pool 30 Presentation 
 
 
 
 
 
Committee Reports 
Executive 03/10/16 
 
 
Public Input 
 
 
Irene Hinkley 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report – February 
2016 
 
 
Operating Fund 
 
 
 
 
 



8645 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 03/15/16 

 
11% over budget, Year-to-date Total Revenues are 11% over budget and 
Year-to-date Total Expenses are 7% under budget. There were 21,184 
active services as of February 29, 2016, compared to 22,193 as of January 
31, 2016.  
 
  Reporting on the General Fund, Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer 
stated $310,967 was received in Property Tax Revenue. $20,655 was 
received in Groundwater Assessments from private pumpers. $682,206 was 
paid out in State Water Project charges. 
 
  Regarding the Wastewater Fund, $6,017 was received in 
Sewer Contract payments. There are a total of 75 contracts with 31 
delinquent (41%). $60,356 was paid out in Accounts Payable. 
 
17429.  President Cioffi called upon Agency Counsel Riddell to 
present his request for authorization to execute informed written consent. 
 
  Mr. Riddell stated that that DWR (Department of Water 
Resources) has filed a petition with the State Water Resources Control 
Board to approve an additional point of diversion on the Sacramento River, 
north of the Delta, to allow SWP (State Water Project) water be delivered 
through facilities that DWR hopes to construct for the transportation of 
water under the Delta pursuant to the Bay Delta Conservation Plan. The 
petition was prepared by DWR legal staff in-house. However, DWR now 
would like to engage an outside firm to assist DWR in the proceedings 
before the State Board on that petition. DWR has asked BB&K (Best, Best 
& Krieger) to assist in the proceedings before the State Board. 
 
  Mr. Riddell noted that BB&K serves as general counsel to 
DWA and to several other State Water contractors. BB&K believes that all 
of them support DWR in its petition. However, because DWA is either 
adverse or potentially adverse to DWR on other unrelated matters, BB&K 
would need informed written consents from DWR and from the State Water 
contractor clients that BB&K already represents in order to assist DWR in 
the proceedings before the State Board. DWR has informed BB&K that it is 
willing to sign any conflict waiver letter that may be requested to allow 
BB&K to continue representing its other clients as to matters in which 
DWR has an interest. Staff requests that the Board authorize the General 
Manager to sign an informed consent letter to allow BB&K to assist DWR 
in the upcoming proceedings before the State Board on its petition seeking 
approval of an additional point of diversion to accommodate the proposed 
Delta improvements, conditional on DWR also signing a comprehensive 
informed written consent that allows BB&K to represent the Agency as to 
any other matter in which DWR may be an adverse or interested party. 
   
   
 
 

Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report – February 
2016 
(Cont.) 
 
 
 
General Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Wastewater Fund 
 
 
 
 
Item for Action: 
Request Authorization 
to Execute Informed 
Written Consent 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8646 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 03/15/16 

 
  Director Ewing made a motion to authorize the General 
Manager to sign an informed consent letter to allow BB&K to assist DWR 
in the upcoming proceedings. Directory Oygar seconded the motion, which 
carried unanimously.   
 
17430.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to report on 
the February Water Use Reduction Figures. 
 
  Mr. Krause reported that the Agency and its customers 
achieved a 24.6 percent reduction during February 2016 compared to 
February 2013. He noted a calculation error for last month; the reduction 
was reported as 10 percent, but was actually 20 percent. 
 
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause announced that the Public 
Information department has been changed to Outreach & Conservation 
department. Ms. Hudgens’ title is now Outreach & Conservation Manager. 
     
17431.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
provide an update on the Lake Perris Seismic Remediation. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated that the DWR Operations Maintenance & 
Engineering Committee have issued their Perris Dam, seismic remediation 
of embankment contract update for February 2016. He noted the highlights 
of the report are 44.8% of the work has been completed with 46.4% of the 
time elapsed. The contractor has resumed work on the left abutment haul 
road; however, a change order is expected regarding the delays and revised 
milestones. To date, there have been $761,192 in change orders submitted. 
This amounts to 1% of the original contract. This amount does not include 
anticipated change orders resulting from work being performed on the left 
abutment haul road nor the quarry rock processing plant. 
 
17432.  President Cioffi asked Mr. Reeb to discuss his 2015/2016 
Legislative Report. 
 
  Mr. Reeb discussed the following items: Cal-ISO, New 
Assembly Speaker Rendon, AB2304, AB2389, SB20 (Public Goods 
Charge); and a Proposed Amendment to Prop 218. He noted that ACWA 
will be meeting on March 25 to discuss the Prop 218 amendment. Mr. Reeb 
will report back to the Agency on ACWA’s position. 
   
  Director Ewing moved to approve recommendations listed in 
the 2015/2016 Legislative Report, including a not favor position on the 
Prop 218 amendment. Director Oygar seconded the motion, which carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
 
 

Action Item: 
(Cont.) 
Execute Informed 
Written Consent 
 
 
 
Items for Discussion: 
February Water 
Production Comparison 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Outreach & 
Conservation 
Department 
 
 
Lake Perris Seismic 
Remediation Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2015/2016 Legislative 
Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2015/2016 Legislative 
Report Approved 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8647 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 03/15/16 

 
17433.  Vice President Stuart noted he and Assistant General Manager 
Johnson attended the State of the City for Cathedral City. 
 
  Director Ewing announced he would be attending the One PS 
Picnic this Saturday. 
   
17434.  At 9:46 a.m., President Cioffi convened into Closed Session 
for the purpose of Conference with Legal Counsel, (A) Existing Litigation, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band 
of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al; (B) Existing 
Litigation, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), ACBCI 
vs. County of Riverside, et al; (C) Existing  Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. 
Department of Interior; (D) Existing Litigation, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert 
Water Agency; and (E) Real Property Negotiators, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.8, Property-APN 502-560-038, Agency Negotiators: 
Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steven L. Johnson, Assistant 
General Manager, Negotiating Parties: Chris Thomsen, New Mesquite 
HOA, Under Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition.  
  
17435.  At 10:32 a.m., President Cioffi reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action. 
 
17436.  In the absence of any further business, President Cioffi 
adjourned the meeting at 10:33 a.m. 
  
  

                                         ____________________________________ 
                                         James Cioffi, President                                  

 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 

Directors 
Comments/Requests 
 
Directors’ Event 
Attendances 
 
 
 
 
Closed Session: 
A. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et 
al 
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County 
C. Existing Litigation – 
DWA vs. U.S. Dept. of 
Interior 
D. Existing Litigation – 
MSWD vs. DWA 
E. Real Property 
Negotiators  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reconvene – No 
Reportable Action 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



3 

Page 1 of 6 

 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
APRIL 5, 2016 

  
  
 

On March 21, the Department of Water Resources (DWR) increased our 2016 allocation of State 
Water Project (SWP) water for contractors from 30% to 45%. The allocation increase is made 
consistent with the current and projected hydrological conditions. This increased allocation 
percentage will result in 25,086 acre-feet for DWA and 62,258 acre-feet for CVWD for a combined 
total of 87,346. Table A deliveries to the valley will most likely not occur in 2016 unless the 
allocation is increased above 60%. However, MWD is currently making a 30,000 acre-foot 
delivery of CVWD Quantification Settlement Water (QSA) at the Whitewater turnouts.  It is being 
delivered at a rate of 200 cfs with 175 cfs going through the Whitewater Power Plant and 25 cfs 
bypassing the plant. The amount may be increased to 35,000 acre-feet. The water delivery will 
cease short of a 30,000 acre-foot delivery on April 8, due to MWD increased water demands.  
Continued deliveries of this water may occur later in this year. 

 
 

On March 17 at approximately 11:15 p.m., stand-by responded to a hit fire hydrant at Sunrise 
Way and Arenas Rd. The fire hydrant was damaged and had to be replaced. It is now back in 
service. The water ran through a fully open six inch opening for approximately 20 minutes. A 
police report was made and an Agency damage report was filled out.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 6 

 

 
 

 
On March 18 at approximately 1:50 p.m. construction responded to a hit fire hydrant on the North 
West corner of Camino Centro and Vereda Del Sur. This was a hit and run. Staff was able to 
replace the bolts and gasket and put the fire hydrant back into service. The water loss was 
through a six inch opening for approximately 20 minutes.  A police report was filed.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 6 

 

 
 
On March 30 at approximately 1:40 p.m. staff responded to a hit fire hydrant at 67555 East Palm 
Canyon Drive (this was a hit and run). The fire hydrant had to be replaced and is back in service. 
A police report was made. The water loss was through a fully open 6 inch opening which ran for 
approximately 20 minutes.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Page 4 of 6 

 

 

General Manager’s Meetings and Activities 
 
Meetings: 
 

• 3/16/16 Meeting with Bob Reeb and Eduardo Garcia and his staff regarding SGMA 
• 3/16-3/17 Attended Delta Committee Meeting, Policy Dinner and Monthly SWC meeting 

 in Sacramento 
• 3/18/16 Workshop at Krieger & Stewart, Inc. with staff to learn about their update of  

 our 2010 Urban Water Management Plan and this year’s Ground Water  
 Replenishment and Assessment Programs 

• 3/21/16 Meeting of the State Water Project, Class 8 East Branch Contractors 
• 3/21/16 Meeting with Special Districts to discuss LAFCO election 
• 3/21/16 Coordination meeting between DWA, CVWD and MWD 
• 3/22/16 Staff Meeting to Discuss Backup Facilities Charges and Service Installation  

 Fees 
• 3/23/16 Capital Improvement Budget Meeting 
• 3/23/16 Meeting with Krieger & Stewart, Inc. to discuss options for rehabilitation of 

 Recycled Water Filters 
• 3/24/16 Meeting with New Mesquite HOA to discuss property transaction 
• 3/25/16 Rate Study Kickoff meeting with NBS 
• 3/28/16 Workshop at the RWQCB office on the Salt Nutrient Management Plan 
• 3/29/16 Meeting with Arden Wallum 
• 3/29/16 Meeting with CPV to discuss continuance of Conservation Programs 
• Meeting with Parties involved with SGMA in the San Gorgonio Pass Sub-basin 

Activities: 
 

• Estimate of cost to re-equip well 6 for remediation 
• E-Billing 
• Customer Use Report 
• Recycled Water Reservoir Coating Failure 
• Recycled Water Filter Rehabilitation 
• Waterline Relocations for storm drain facilities. 
• Whitewater Mutual Easement Developer Conflicts 
• Whitewater Service Agreements and cost of service 
• Recycled Booster Easement 
• Rate Study 
• Replenishment Assessment Charge 
• Facility Backup Charge and Service Installation Charges 

 
 



Page 5 of 6 

 

Follow-up Items: 
Question: Does DWA hold any Renewable Energy Credits (REC’s) for the Renewable Energy 
  that it produces? 

Answer: Yes. However, the Public Utilities Commission ruled that the credits for power  
  generated from our hydros belong to the Power Utility holding the contract for  
  purchase of the power. This means that all the REC’s we have generated at the  
  Whitewater and Snow Creek Power plants belong to Southern California Edison  
  (SCE). Under our new SCE contracts we are compensated for the REC’s in the  
  price we are being paid for power. 

  We produce solar power REC’s under a Net Meeting Agreement with SCE.  Under 
  the Net Metering Agreement we generate REC’s which are worth approximately $1 
  per megawatt hour.  Under the Net Metering Agreement we own our REC’s.   
  However, they are the least valuable type of REC and we cannot sell them without 
  going  through a broker, and registering with the Western Renewable Energy  
  Generator Information System (WREGIS).  Increasingly RECs are being assigned 
  unique ID numbers and tracked through regional tracking systems/registries such as 
  WREGIS.  This is a fairly complicated and expensive process and at a selling price 
  of $1/MWH the cost of the transaction would require all of the profit made from the 
  sale.   Additional general information of REC’s is provided below. 

• Renewable Energy Certificates (RECs), also known as Green tags, Renewable 
Energy Credits, Renewable Electricity Certificates, or Tradable Renewable 
Certificates (TRCs), are tradable, non-tangible energy commodities in the United 
States that represent proof that 1 megawatt-hour (MWh) of electricity was generated 
from an eligible renewable energy resource (renewable electricity) and was fed into 
the shared system of power lines which transport energy. 

 
• While traditional carbon emissions trading programs use penalties and incentives to 

achieve established emissions targets, RECs simply incentivize carbon-neutral 
renewable energy by providing a production subsidy to electricity generated from 
renewable sources. 
 

• A green energy provider is credited with one REC for every 1,000 kWh or 1 MWh of 
electricity it produces. A certifying agency gives each REC a unique identification 
number to make sure it doesn't get double-counted. The green energy is then fed 
into the electrical grid, and the accompanying REC can then be sold on the open 
market. Use of the REC may include, but is not limited to, (1) use of the REC by an 
end-use customer, marketer, generator, or utility to comply with a statutory or 
regulatory requirement, (2) a public claim associated with a purchase of RECs by an 
end-use customer, or (3) the sale of any component attributes of a REC for any 
purpose. Once a REC is retired, it may not be sold, donated, or transferred to any 
other party. No party other than the owner may make claims associated with retired 
REC’s. 



Page 6 of 6 

 

 
• There are two main markets for renewable energy certificates in the United States - 

compliance markets and voluntary markets. 
 

• For example, in California the law is 33% renewable by 2020, whereas New York 
has a 24% requirement by 2013. Electric utilities in these states demonstrate 
compliance with their requirements by purchasing RECs; in the California example, 
the electric companies would need to hold RECs equivalent to 33% of their 
electricity sales. 

 
• Voluntary markets are ones in which customers choose to buy renewable power out 

of a desire to use renewable energy. Most corporate and household purchases of 
renewable energy are voluntary purchases. Renewable energy generators located in 
states that do not have a Renewable Portfolio Standard can sell their RECs to 
voluntary buyers, usually at a cheaper price than compliance market RECs. 

 
Question: Why was there a significant increase in expenses at the Recycled Water Facility in 
  February? 
 
Answer: We have begun to lose a significant amount of filter media due to an inadvertent  
  filter media bed disruption.  This has required an extensive investigation to  
  understand the problem and required us to supplement the filter media that is lost 
  during filter operation ($7,100 purchase). 
   
  There was a significant increase in chemical costs which can be attributed to the  
  irregularity of the shipments and the coincidental shipment of many chemicals at  
  once.  The overall demand for chemicals has not increased and will average out to a 
  normal cost over time ($20,000 purchase). 
 
  Together these items account for $27,100 of the $28,960 increase difference  
  between January and February expenses. 
 
  Additionally there was not a Solar Power Rebate Received ($9,000 - $10,000) to  
  offset the expenses. 
 
Question: What is the contingency amount provided for in the Lake Perris Damn Remediation 
  Project? 
 
Answer: The current approved charter for the dam remediation project has a total $125.6M 
  budget and includes $5.6M Contingency. 
 

 

































































6-B 
 
      

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
APRIL 5, 2016  

 
 

RE: REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO REALLOCATE 2015/2016 MAIN 
OVERSIZING BUDGET TO COVER COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH 
MAIN RELOCATION WORK DUE TO CITY OF PALM SPRINGS 
STORM DRAIN PROJECT   

 
On February 22, 2016, the City of Palm Springs notified Agency staff of a storm 
drain project within Hermosa Drive that is scheduled to start construction in July 
2016 and will require the relocation of three water mains.    
 
The estimated cost for Agency crews to relocate the three mains is $100,000.  
Currently there isn’t an allocation of funds for this work in the budget. 
 
The 2015/2016 budget includes Work Order 15-699 for main oversizing 
participation. The budget amount for the work order is $100,000.  
 
Staff does not anticipate participating in a main oversizing project by June 2016, 
therefore, is requesting authorization by the Board to reallocate this budget to 
cover costs associated with the main relocation work to facilitate the installation 
of the City’s proposed storm drain.  
 



6-C 
 
 
      

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
APRIL 5, 2016  

 
 

RE: REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO CALL FOR BIDS FOR 
CONSTRUCTING ZONE 1240 BOOSTER PLANT (DESERT 
PALISADE TRACT)    

 
 
The 2015/2016 Capital Improvement Budget includes Work Order 15-150-B for the 
installation of Zone 1240 Booster Plant. This plant is located inside the Desert Palisade 
tract and will provide service to 54 lots of the 110 lots within the upper zone of the 
development. 
 
The current budget amount for the work order is $950,000 to include engineering, 
construction, inspection, and overhead costs. To date, $61,800 has been spent on 
engineering design.  
 
The original Engineer’s construction cost estimate for the project was $800,000. 
Recently, similar plants designed by Krieger & Stewart, Inc. (K&S) for other water 
districts have received bids at a higher cost than anticipated; therefore, staff asked K&S 
to evaluate the estimate for the project based on these bid amounts. After reviewing the 
figures, K&S’s construction cost estimate for the project is $1,130,000. Staff anticipates 
that the budget will need to be augmented due to the rise in construction costs and has 
added a preliminary budget augmentation in the amount of $500,000 as part of the 
2016/2017 budget. Upon receiving bids, staff will re-evaluate the augmentation amount.              
 
With authorization being granted today, the bid opening for the project will be held on 
May 10, 2016. Once the Agency has received the bid, staff will determine if a budget 
augmentation is required and will notify the Board at the May 17, 2016 meeting. 
Contract award is also scheduled at said meeting. If awarded, completion of work is 
scheduled for January 2017. 
 
Staff requests authorization to advertise for bids for constructing the Zone 1240 Booster 
Plant. 





BOARD/MEMOS/MARTIN2016/2007COP 

6-D 
 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT  
 TO  

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
APRIL 5, 2016 

 
 
 

RE: REQUEST APPROVAL TO BEGIN PROCESS OF ADVANCED 
REFUNDING 2007 CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION 

 
Staff has reached out to Hilltop Securities to explore the feasibility of 
Advanced Refunding (refinancing) our 2007 Certificate of Participation Issue 
(COP).  With the bond market interest rates at historical lows, this is an 
opportune time to refinance our outstanding Certificates.   The Certificates 
were issued for a 30 year term at a cost of $26,860,000. We have 
approximately 21 years remaining in the amount of $21,420,000.  The purpose 
for refinancing is to reduce the Agency’s debt service obligations. 
 
If the Agency is able to refinance the Certificates it will result in savings of 
approximately $240,000 per year and cumulatively in excess of $5,000,000 
over the remaining life of the Certificates.  Attached to the staff report is a 
detailed memo from Hilltop Securities explaining the rationale & details of the 
process. 
 
Staff requests board approval to begin the process of Advanced Refunding our 
2007 Certificates of Participation.  When the process is finalized, staff will 
present the final summary for board approval. 
 



 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: MARTIN KRIEGER, DESERT WATER AGENCY 

FROM: TODD SMITH, HILLTOP SECURITIES INC. 

SUBJECT: REFUNDING SUMMARY FOR THE 2007 CERTIFICATES OF 
PARTICIPATION 

DATE: 03/30/2016 

CC:  

INTRODUCTION 

Desert Water Agency (the “Agency”) issued its 2007 Certificates of Participation (the 
“Prior Certificates”) to fund water system improvements for the Agency. The Prior 
Certificates were issued in an original par amount of $26,860,000 and currently $21,420,000 
remains outstanding with interest rates ranging from 4% to 5%. The Prior Certificates are 
optionally callable (optional prepayment provisions) beginning on May 1, 2018 at par plus 
accrued interest to the call date. 

Current bond market interest rates are near historical lows which present an opportunity 
for the Agency to refinance the Prior Certificates for debt service savings, which is referred 
to as a high to low refunding. If the Agency moves forward with the refinancing, the Prior 
Certificates will be refunded on an “Advance Refunding” basis. The proceeds of the 2016 
Refunding Certificates will be used to purchase US Treasury obligations that will be 
deposited into an escrow account that will pay the debt service obligations on the Prior 
Certificates until the May 1, 2018 call date. Because the escrow is funded sufficiently to cover 
the debt service requirements on the Prior Certificates the Net Operating Revenue pledge is 
legally discharged and is subsequently pledged to the 2016 Refunding Certificates. 

REFUNDING AND ESTIMATED SAVINGS 

The Prior Certificates have a remaining average coupon of a 4.56%, and with the 
refunding, the Agency can achieve borrowing costs right around 3%. It is this difference in 
borrowing costs that produce the savings. In addition, the Prior Certificates funded a cash 
debt service reserve fund of about $1.7 million and we are proposing to bring this in as a 
source of funds to the refunding and replace the cash funded debt service reserve fund with 
an insurance policy known as a surety bond. Therefore the Agency does not have to borrow 
for the reserve fund which helps increase the annual savings that is achieved under the 
refunding of the Prior Certificates. Under this structure the annual savings to the Agency is 
estimated at about $240,000 per year and cumulatively is in excess of $5 million dollars over 
the life of the refunding. On a present value basis this equates to approximately $2.2 million 
dollars which is 10.4%. The market savings benchmark municipalities often use is to achieve 



2 

a minimum PV savings threshold of 3%. This financing opportunity presents savings in 
multiples of this. 

Current bond market conditions call for premium bond structures. This means that 
investors are looking for coupon rates higher than market yields and as a result the investor 
will pay the Agency a price greater than par for the certificates. This premium that is 
generated translates into a source of funds which means the Agency does not have to 
borrow as much in the refunding issue to satisfy the requirements to pay of the Prior 
Certificates. In numbers this means that there is $21,420,000 currently outstanding but with 
the transfer in of the Prior Certificates’ debt service reserve fund plus the premium received 
from investors the estimated par amount of the refunding is lower at $18,900,000.   

It takes about 90 to 120 days to execute and issue the refunding certificates and with the 
strong underlying credit rating of the Agency and strong liquidity this issue will come to 
market with very strong demand. Drought conditions and its effects on other water agency 
cash flows has had some impact on the investor side but we don’t see the same issues here 
the Agency is performing and hitting its revenue targets. 

I am available for questions if any should arise during your committee meeting. My 
number is 760.632.1347. 

 

 

 



Mark/040516 reso 1129 bloomerlafco nominee staffreport.docx 

6-E 
 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
APRIL 5, 2016 

 
RE: REQUEST ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 1129 
 
 
Attached for the Board’s review is Resolution No. 1129, supporting the 
nomination of Kristin Bloomer for the position of the Eastern Riverside County 
Special District Representative for LAFCO. 
 
The Riverside Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) announced the 
nomination period for the appointment process of a Regular Member and an 
Alternate Member of the Riverside LAFCO (Attached). The nomination period is 
from March 29 and will close on April 29. 
 
There will be two positions to be voted on: one position will be for the Special 
District Member from the eastern portion of the County, and the second position 
will be for an Alternate Special District Member from any district within Riverside 
County. 
 
It is requested the Board adopt Resolution No. 1129 in support of Kristin 
Bloomer’s nomination for the position of the Regular Special District Member. 
  
 











7-A 

01358.00002\24608672.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

March 17, 2016 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: GENERAL MANAGER AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF DESERT WATER AGENCY 

FROM: BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 

RE: MARCH 16, 2016 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
STATE WATER PROJECT CONTRACTORS AUTHORITY AND MARCH 
17, 2016 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE STATE 
WATER CONTRACTORS, INC. 

The March 16, 2016 meeting of the Board of Directors of the State Water Project 

Contractors Authority was conducted in the SWPCA Board room located in the Senator Hotel.in 

downtown Sacramento.  The March 17, 2016 meeting of the Board of Directors of the State 

Water Contractors, Inc., was conducted at the Tsakopoulos Library Galleria in downtown 

Sacramento.  

1. SWPCA Board Meeting. 

The most significant topic of discussion at the SWPCA Board meeting was the 

status of the Delta habitat restoration projects.  David Okita, now employed by DWR to oversee 

Delta habitat restoration, was present for a report to the SWPCA Board.  Recall that the 

biological opinion for the Delta Smelt requires the restoration or creation of 8,000 acres of sub-

tidal habitat in the Delta.  The biological opinion required the restoration to be completed by the 

end of 2016, but the Federal regulatory agencies understand that the work cannot be completed 

by that deadline, and they have been willing to extend time so long as progress is made.  DWR 

hopes to start a rehabilitation project on Prospect Island in 2018.  Planning has already 

commenced for the Lower Yolo project, and work could begin in 2017, but there are still a 

number of policy issues that need to be resolved first.   

SWPCA is a member of the State and Federal Contractors Water Agency, a joint 

powers authority created for the purpose of performing habitat restoration.  SFCWA has been 

urging DWR to contract the restoration work out to other entities, in hopes that the work can be 

performed more quickly and less expensively.  Thus far, everything has been done by DWR in 



 

 
- 2 - 

01358.00002\24608672.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

house, with little progress made.  As reported in past memos, DWR has been considering the 

concept of requesting proposals from outside entities (private and public) to perform the work.  

The concept has been discussed at length with DWR legal staff and also with the California 

Department of General Services, which would have to authorize solicitation of proposals.   

Since our last report on this subject, DWR has determined that it can legally 

negotiate directly with another governmental entity such as SFCWA to perform a project, 

without first requesting competitive proposals; and can concurrently solicit proposals from 

private entities to perform other projects.  DWR has been drafting the form of RFP that it would 

use to solicit proposals from private parties, and it hopes to have the RFP out for responses by 

the end of March.  The concept would be a “turnkey” contract with progress payments as 

milestones are met.  DWR expects to receive at least two responses to its first RFP, and perhaps 

as many as five.  Responses will be evaluated using a scoring system and must be “shovel ready” 

so that the projects can be completed quickly.  If DWR does not receive sufficient responses, a 

second RFP may be circulated instead. 

DWR is now also ready to negotiate agreements with public agencies for habitat 

restoration projects to be performed by those public agencies.  This is perfect for SFCWA, since 

it already has a couple of projects that it would like to commence.  The “Tule Red” project will 

be the prototype, as SFCWA has already commenced work on that project and has invested $4 

million in it already.  DWR is working with the SFCWA attorneys to prepare the proposed form 

of agreement, which will then be taken to the Department of General Services for approval.  The 

Tule Red project would provide 600 acres of habitat, and that project is already in the permitting 

process.  If an agreement is executed with DWR for the performance of that project, in partial 

satisfaction of the requirements set forth in the biological opinion, the first progress payment by 

DWR would be significant, and would provide the funding necessary to continue work on other 

similar projects, thereby creating a revolving fund for the performance of such projects until the 

habitat restoration requirements set forth in the biological opinion have been satisfied.  SFCWA 

is prepared to bring three or four additional projects to DWR for agreements, if a prototype 

agreement can be developed for the Tule Red project.  Negotiation of an agreement with 

SFCWA means that the risk of participating in a RFP process is eliminated, and less “up front” 

funding is necessary.  SWPCA anticipates possibly needing to collect a total of $750,000 in “up 



 

 
- 3 - 

01358.00002\24608672.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

front” contributions from Contractors in order to get the process going, but it is possible that no 

up front funding will be necessary if an agreement is reached with DWR regarding the Tule Red 

project and a progress payment is made to SFCWA for that project. 

One significant problem in all of this is in dealing with the Federal fish agencies 

on permitting issues.  The Federal fish agencies apparently are understaffed, and it takes them a 

long time to process the required permits. 

2. Stockton Ship Channel Aeration Facilities. 

At the SWC Board meeting, the Board first took action on several action items.  

The first action item involved approval of an extension to an existing agreement with other 

entities to fund aeration facilities in the Stockton Ship Channel.  In 2011, the State Water 

Contractors entered into a cooperative agreement with other affected entities to pay for aeration 

facilities installed in the channel to address water quality issues.  The Regional Water Quality 

Control Board held the State Water Project partially responsible for water quality issues in the 

channel, along with other culprits.  The main culprit, however, was the City of Stockton, which 

was discharging treated wastewater into the channel for disposal.  Under the agreement, the 

SWC agreed to bear 16 2/3 % of the cost of installing and operating the aeration facilities to 

address the requirements imposed by the Regional Board.  The cost was expected to be $300,000 

per year.  However, the City of Stockton thereafter improved its wastewater treatment process, 

resulting in the discharge of higher quality effluent into the channel.  As a result, water quality 

improved dramatically and the cost of operating the aeration facilities was reduced dramatically.  

The Contractors originally deposited $300,000 as their share of the anticipated funding of the 

facilities for the initial term of the agreement.  Of that amount, $240,000 still remains on credit 

from the Contractors.  The Board authorized executing an amendment to extend the agreement 

for another three years.  The costs have been billed by DWR on the statement of charges sent to 

all affected Contractors. 

 3. Expansion of Cal-ISO. 

Legislation has been introduced that would expand Cal-ISO beyond California 

and into neighboring states.  The concept is being pushed by a private energy provider in 

Oregon, probably to gain access to the California transmission system without having to pay the 



 

 
- 4 - 

01358.00002\24608672.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

costs that others have already borne for the construction of that system.  Cal-ISO welcomes the 

concept of expanding its authority into other states.  However, that would dilute the authority 

that California currently has exclusively.  The SWC would like to slow the process down in 

order to assess what the impact would be for the State Water Project.  At this point, the 

Contractors estimate that the proposal would result in a 50% increase in the cost of transmission.  

There may be offsetting benefits that would reduce the net costs, but the SWC has not had an 

opportunity yet to evaluate the potential benefits.  The proposal would provide greater access to 

renewable energy, and thus might provide a more cost effective way to accomplish California’s 

green energy objectives, but the Contractors need to evaluate that.  The SWC Board authorized 

the execution of a letter to Cal-ISO asking that the process be slowed down, so as to allow more 

time to evaluate the proposal. 

4. Economic Analysis of California Water Fix. 

The Board authorized an additional expenditure to hire economist Dr. Sunding 

from the University of California at Berkeley to perform some additional economic analysis of 

California Water Fix.  The Contractors want to have some economic analysis of the value of 

increased capacity and the opportunity for additional water transfers, beyond the existing 

capability.  Currently, under existing regulations, the Contractors have a narrow window of 

opportunity to effect transfers during the summer.  Water can be transferred through the Delta 

approximately 35% of the time.  Construction of the tunnels will increase water transfer 

capability to approximately 90% of the time.  There will also be increased capability to transfer 

more water during wet years.  The Contractors hope to quantify the economic value of that 

increased water transfer capability. 

5. Bio-Accoustic Barriers in Georgiana Slough. 

DWR is proceeding with a very expensive study of the effectiveness of “bio-

accoustic” barriers in the Georgiana Slough to reduce the entrainment of young salmon.  The 

barriers utilize underwater sound waves to deter the entry of salmon smolts.  The anticipated cost 

of the study is approximately $97 million.  The study is being conducted in order to satisfy 

requirements set forth in the biological opinion for salmon.  However, the Contractors believe 



 

 
- 5 - 

01358.00002\24608672.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

that the requirements of the opinion can be satisfied by significantly reducing the scope of the 

work to be done. 

6. State Water Supply. 

John Leahigh from DWR was present to provide a more positive report regarding 

the State’s water supply.  He began his report by referring to another “miracle” March.  Since the 

last Board meeting in late February, precipitation has produced sufficient runoff to increase 

storage in Lake Oroville by approximately 1 million acre-feet.  John stated that the inflows from 

the additional precipitation were continuing, and were expected to increase storage to the extent 

that it would begin encroaching in flood control space by the following weekend, and that 

storage in Lake Shasta was already encroaching into flood control space.  Flows in the 

Sacramento River were high and water was actually being diverted into the Yolo bypass.  John 

stated that Delta outflow was at 145,000 cubic feet per second.  However, combined exports 

from the Delta were only at about 8,000 cubic feet per second, with about 4,500 of that being 

taken by the State Water Project and about 3,400 being diverted by the Central Valley Project.  

Regulations designed to protect endangered species were preventing the export of more than that.  

Total storage in the San Luis Reservoir was just shy of 1 million acre-feet, with about 600,000 

acre-feet in the State’s share.  Thus, San Luis storage was only at about 56% of average, due to 

the restricted exports from the Delta.  Leahigh stated that the snowpack in the northern Sierra 

was slightly above average for that date.  The snowpack in the central Sierra was at 

approximately 95% of average, and the snowpack in the southern Sierra was at about 80% of 

average.  In general, storage in the northern reservoirs was well above average, while storage in 

the southern reservoirs was well below average.  Although not reported at the meeting, later that 

day DWR announced an increase in the allocation from 30% to 45%. 

MICHAEL T. RIDDELL 













Ending At Midnight - March 31, 2016

Graph Updated 04/01/2016 10:15 AM

LEGEND

Capacity
(TAF)

% of Capacity |% of Historical
Average

Historical

Average

Trinity Lake
52% | 66%

Shasta Reservoir
88% | 109%

Lake Oroville
86% | 114%

Folsom Lake
71% | 110%

New Melones
26% | 41%

Don Pedro Reservoir
60% | 82%

Exchequer Reservoir
33% | 60%

San Luis Reservoir
52% | 57%

Millerton Lake
66% | 94%

Perris Lake
36% | 43%

Castaic Lake
41% | 46%

Pine Flat Reservoir
39% | 69%






















































	04 05 16 Board Agenda
	Item 2 03 15 16 Board Minutes
	2
	MINUTES
	OF THE REGULAR MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 3 04 05 16 GM report
	APRIL 5, 2016

	Item 4A
	Item 6A
	Item 6B Budget Allocation Hermosa Drive Main Relocation Staff Report
	Item 6C 04 05 16 Zone 1240 Booster Plant Staff Report
	Item 6D 04 05 16 2007 Certificates of Participation staff report
	ADP9A8C.tmp
	Introduction
	refunding and estimated savings


	Item 6E 040516 Reso 1129 BloomerLAFCO Nominee staffreport
	APRIL 5, 2016

	Item 7A SWC_ MEMO TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MAR  17 2016 BOARD MEETING (DESERT)-c1
	MEMORANDUM
	1. SWPCA Board Meeting.
	2. Stockton Ship Channel Aeration Facilities.

	Item 8A 04 05 16 PI Media
	Item 8B 04 05 16 PI Activities

